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2021 10
1,677,362 32.1
253,029 4.8
2,808,818 53.7
4,739,209 90.6
490,426 9.4
5,229,635 100.0
2021 10
RAPYUTA ROBOTICS
12,049| 21,000.00| 253,029,000| 21,000.00| 253,029,000 .7
/JPY/
I SHARES ISCI 26,900| 4,176.30| 112,342,444| 5,568.98| 149,805,586 8
INDIA ETF ’ 2110 2342, »968. ,805, .
SAMSUNG
ELECTRONICS PRF 15,600| 4,552.28| 71,015,543| 6,245.00| 97,422,067 .8
/KRW/
TAIWAN
SEMICONDUCTOR MAN 40,000 1,588.79| 63,551,594| 2,419.22| 96,768,612 .8
/TWp/
NETEASE INC-ADR 8,439| 9,666.04| 81,571,674| 11,127.70| 93,906,657 .8
YAVUATA NOTOR €O 29,500| 1,628.22| 48,032,515| 3,165.00| 93,367,500 7
LTD /JPY/ ’ e e T T )
LG CHEM LTD /KRW/ 1,111| 80,381.94] 89,304,334 81,575.37 90,630,234 .7
HAIER SIART HONE 212,200 348.51| 73,954,311 426.55( 90,513,191 7
CO LTD- /HKD/ ’ ’ T ) T )
DBS GROUP
HOLDINGS LTD 33,900 2,203.35| 74,693,571| 2,666.08| 90,380,092 .7
/SGD/
10 NINE DRAGONS 613,000 139.94| 85,783,946 143.35| 87,876,518 6
PAPER HOLDI /HKD/ ’ ’ T ) T )
11 TENCENT FOLDINGS 12,200| 7,620.57| 92,970,902| 7,050.48| 86,015,836 6
LTD /HKD/ ’ T T T T )
12 ALIBABA GROLP 4,565 26,018.46 118,774,262| 18,807.28| 85,855,248 6
HOLDING-SP ADR ’ T T U T )
COWAY CO LTD
13 oy 10,902| 7,003.62| 76,353,419| 7,747.71| 84,465,517 .6
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CHINA MERCHANTS

14 BANK-H /HKD/ 86,500 569.54| 49,265,079 960.83| 83,111,728 1.6

15 HENGAN INTL. GROUP 138,500 711.60| 98,556,409 595.85| 82,524,677 1.5
CO LTD /HKD/ ’ ’ T ) T )
HONG KONG

16 EXCHANGES & CL 11,700 5,034.77| 58,906,777| 6,900.97| 80,741,316 1.5
/HKD/
MEDIATEK INC

17 21,0001 2,661.67| 55,895,162| 3,743.63| 78,616,296 1.5
/TWD/

18 JIANGSU YANGHE 23,600 2,695.90| 63,623,276| 3,315.66]| 78,249,568 1.5
BREWERY - /CNH/ ’ T T T T )

19 TRIPOD TECHNOLOGY 162,000 429.17| 69,526,330 481.79| 78,050,446 1.5
CORP /TWD/ ’ - 5940, - 050, -

20 %IFZSOURCE L 11,700| 2,846.47| 33,303,670 6,440.00| 75,348,000 1.4

21 HYURDAT OBIS €O 2,934| 24,793.48| 72,744,062| 24,589.70| 72,146,193 1.4
LTD /KRW/ ’ 199 2 155, »909. ,146, -
SINO

22 BIOPHARMACEUT ICAL 834,000 104.59| 87,224,946 84.43| 70,414,491 1.3
/HKD/
ENECHANGE LTD

23 13,200 2,498.71| 32,983,037| 5,330.00| 70,356,000 1.3
/JPY/

24 CHAILEASE HOLDING 63,950 516.28| 33,015,955 1,090.70| 69,750,077 1.3
CO LTD /TWD/ ’ i T U T i

25 TIS INC 7JPY/ 22,400 2,205.07| 49,393,664| 3,095.00| 69,328,000 1.3

26 ASE TECHNOLOGY 167,000 432.06| 72,153,333 409.22| 68,339,142 1.3
HOLDING C /TWD/ i i T i T i

27 KOREA TNVESTVENT 7,943 9,008.89| 71,557,584| 8,489.30| 67,430,531 1.3
HOLDING /KRW/ ’ T T T T )

28 BAIDU INC 3,555 15,243.44| 54,190,428| 18,499.42| 65,765,423 1.2

29 NOVURA RESEARCH 14,400 2,992.58| 43,093,081| 4,540.00| 65,376,000 1.2
INSTITUT /JPY/ ’ T T T T ’
HINA LE ROUP

30 ¢ 350 GROU 353,000 198.49| 70,065,978 177.07| 62,505,056 1.2

HOLDIN /HKD/

2021 10

2021 10
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2020 11 2021 10

2021 30 5,525,314 12,684
2020 11 4,974,068 11,419
12 5,121,999 11,758

2021 5,339,594 12,258
5,426,138 12,456

5,479,375 12,579

5,507,048 12,642

5,464,880 12,545

5,525,314 12,684

5,081,897 11,666

5,201,496 11,941

5,116,910 11,747

10 5,229,635 12,005

2020 29 2021

26.8
2020 29 2021

100x +
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435,609 0 435,609
2020 29 (435,609) () (435,609)
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SBI-PICTET

2021 30

2021 30
2.2 5 6 ¥ 4,984,006,065
2.1 558,238,284
10,867,737

2.4 7,156,792
2.4 6,403,307

95,573

168,754

5,566,936,512

2.1 153,192
2.4 17,339,827

8.2E 9,506,837

8.1C 8,148,723
8.2B 2,716,242

8.1E 2,117,019
8.1B 820,250
8.1A 679,356

8.1D 136,190

8.2D 135,818
41,753,454

¥ 5,525,183,058
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
2021 30
FvrpL D

2.4 ¥ 47,270,462
211 7 379,284,608
2.11 7 599,202,172
2.6 22,942,118
2.6 250,144

1,048,949,504

8.2E 29,934,739

8.1C 25,658,352
8.2B 8,552,785

8.1B 7,092,349
8.1E 5,877,019
2.13 5,417,670
8.1A 4,307,669
3,438,682

8.1D 901,534
579,635

459,308

8.2D 427,646
8.2A 346,700
92,994,088

955,955,416

(2,041,409)
(2,041,409)

953,914,007
2.12 (4,864,978)

¥ 949,049,029

@ FVTPL
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
2020 29 ¥
4,576,134,029
949,049,029
2021 30 ¥ 5,525,183,058
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30

2021 30

¥ 949,049,029

(6,454,332,053)
2,448,594, 867
217,901

(379,284,608)

(599,202,172)
(6,403,307)
(95,573)
(7.,156,792)
(10,867,737)
(168,754)
17,339,827

) 24,260,435
(4,018,048,937)

4,576,134,029
4,576,134,029

558,085,092

2.1
2.1 ¥558,085,092

¥(95,573)
¥ 40,113,670
¥ (4,864,978)

@
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
SBI-PICTET
2013 12
2020
2020 29
2021 2014 22
2021
KY1-9005
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman
Islands 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30

SBI

Pictet

SBI

JPY ¥

Al
loT
4.0 5.0
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30

ETF ETN
ADR
EDR
GDR
REIT
JPY JPY

2021 10 29
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
IFRS IFRS
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27 2012
IFRS
FVTPL
FVOCI IFRS
FVTPL
FVTPL

SPP1
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30

SPP1

FVTPL

SPPI
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30

ECL FVOCI

ECL

FVTPL

12
ECL

81/211



EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
2020 29 2021 30
2020 29
2.1
2021 30
2021 30
¥ 6,042,509
552,195,775
558,238,284
(153,192)
¥ 558,085,092
2.2

FVTPL
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30

2021 30 2021 30

¥ 4,984,006,065 ¥ 4,384,803,893
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30

2.3

2021 30
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
2.4
2.5

2.6
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
2.7
)
()
Q)

2021 30
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30

2.8

IAS 32

2021 30
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
2021 30
2021
4,864,978
IAS 12
2021 30
2.13

30
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
100
10,000
2021 30

¥ 5,525,183,058 435,609 ¥ 12,683.8129
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
2021 30

100
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
2021 30
2020 29
2021 30
¥ ¥ 4,576,134,029 ¥ ¥ 4,576,134,029
2021 30
2020 29
2021 30
435,609 435,609
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30

5.1

IMF
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
2021 30
2021 30

CNH ¥ ¥ 302,756,677 ¥ ¥ 302,756,677 5.5

CNY 2,094,820 2,094,820 0.0

HKD 21,537,829 1,039,240,769 9,717,935  1,070,496,533 19.4

IDR 861,666 861,666 0.0

KRW 2,299,344 517,556,645 432,926 520,288,915 9.4

SGD 1,892,869 90,944,169 92,837,038 1.7

WD 786,680 472,796,862 314,696 473,898,238 8.6

usb 5,529,913 591,897,943 (8,922,379) 588,505,477 10.6

35,003,121 3,015,193,065 1,543,178 3,051,739,364 55.2

JPY 523,081,971 1,968,813,000 (18,451,277)  2,473,443,694 44.8

¥558,085,092 ¥  4,984,006,065 ¥ (16,908,099) ¥ 5,525,183,058 100.0

2021 30
2021

CNH +/- 14.86 +/- ¥ 44,989,642
CNY +/- 11.81 +/- 247,398
HKD +/- 5.88 +/- 62,945,196
IDR +/- 6.38 +/- 54,974
KRW +/- 12.05 +/- 62,694,814
SGD +/- 8.21 +/- 7,621,921
TWD +/- 9.98 +/- 47,295,044
usb +/- 6.09 +/- 35,839,984
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
2021 30 50

2,760,979
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30

2021 30

¥ 166,846,000
54,492,179
36,355,115
55,312,568

199,880,554
128,023,344
122,109,500
72,018,835
87,208,184
215,893,330
371,457,557
186,386,821
79,052,362
116,099,499
58,078,359
99,411,971
136,435,000
209,070,992
119,740,561
645,822,991
123,715,632
313,845,000
64,363,150
117,717,412
41,242,991
402,747,802
524,777,665
103,786,524
132,114,167
¥  4,984,006,065
¥  4,984,006,065

N WO NP, P NP WO WL, P DNNMNDNWPRFE O P W
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[EE
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o
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30

¥ 1,504,468,711 27.2
297,312,511 5.4
1,968,813,000 35.6
90,944,169 1.7
517,556,645 9.4
472,796,862 8.5
132,114,167 2.4
¥ 4,984,006,065 90.2
¥ 4,984,006,065 90.2

2021 30 49,840,061
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
2021 30

30
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30

2021 30
¥ 153,192 ¥ ¥ 153,192
17,339,827 17,339,827
9,506,837 9,506,837
8,148,723 8,148,723
2,716,242 2,716,242
2,117,019 2,117,019
820,250 820,250
679,356 679,356
136,190 136,190
135,818 135,818
¥ 41,753,454 ¥ ¥ 41,753,454

15
2021 30
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30

5.2
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30

2021 30
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
2021 30
2020 COVID-19
CoVID-19

COVID-19
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5.3
IFRS

13
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
2021 30
2021 30
¥ 4,730,977,065 ¥ ¥ 253,029,000 ¥ 4,984,006,065
¥ 4,730,977,065 ¥ ¥ 253,029,000 ¥ 4,984,006,065
2021 30
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30

2020 28 ¥

253,029,000
2021 30 ¥ 253,029,000

2021 30
2021 30

¥ 253,029,000
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30

2021 30

100

2021 30
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
2021 30
¥ 379,066,707
217,901
¥ 379,284,608
¥ 599,202,172
¥ 599,202,172
8.1
$3,750 0.06
0.05 10 0.04
2021 30 2021 30
2021 30 2021 30
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
0.60
2021 30 2021
30
0.01 10
2021 30
2020 12 31
2021 30
2021 30
8.2
10,000

2021 30 2021 30
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SBI-PICTET

2020 29
2021 30

0.20

2021
30 2021 30

24
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2021 30
5,000
2021 30
2021 30
0.01
2021 30
2021 30
0.70
2021 30 2021
30
10 2021 30
10
2021 BBH
BBH
2021
BBH
2021 10 29

2021 2021 10 29
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SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund
Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2021

{Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Assats June 30, 2021
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (MNote 2.2, 5, B) ¥ 4084 006085
Cash and cash equivalents (Nate 2.1) 558,238,284
Prepaid fees 10,867 737
Receivables for:
Dividends (Mote 2.4) T.156,792
Securities sold (Note 2.4) 6,403,307
Interest 95,573
Other assets 168,754
Total assets 5 566,536,512
Liabilities
Bank ovardraft (Note 2.1) 153,192
Payables for:
Securities purchased (Note 2.4) 17,339,827
Investment management fees (Note 8.2E) 8,506,837
Distribution fees (Note 8.1C) 8,148,723
Fee agent fees (Nole 8,28) 2,716,242
Professional fees (Mote 8.1E) 2117019
Custody fees (Mote 8.1B) 820,250
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A) 679,356
Transfer agent fees (Mote 8.10) 136,180
Agent mamber company feas (Note 8.20) 135,818
Liabilities {excluding equity) 41,753 454
Equity (being net assets attributable to the holder of unkts) ¥ 5525183058

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
1
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SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Period from July 28, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)
through June 30, 2021
{Exprﬁssad in Japanese Yen)

Income June 30, 2021
Net incornel{loss) from financial instruments at FYTPL™
Dividend income (Note 2.4) ¥ 47 270,462
Net realized gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair valua
through profit or loss (Mote 2.11, T) 379,284,608
Met change in unrealized appreciation on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2,11, T) 589,202,172
Met realized gain on forelgn cumency transactions (Note 2.6) 22942 118
Met change in unrealized appreciation on forelgn curmency translations
{Mote 2.6) 250,144
Total income 1,048 949,504
Expenses
Investment management fees (Note B.2E) 259,934,739
Distribution fees (Note 5.1C) 25,658,352
Fes agent fees (Note 8.28) B /552,785
Custody fees (Note 8.1B) 7,082,348
Professional faes (Note 8.1E) 5877.018
Transaction feas (Nots 2.13) 5,417,670
Administrator fees (Nate 8.14) 4,307,665
Organization expenses 3,438,682
Transfer agent fees (Note 8.10) 01,534
Printing fees 579,635
Registration fees 459,308
Agent member company fees (Note 8.2D) 427 846
Trustes fees (Note 8.2A) 346,700
Total axpanses 92 994 088
Operating profit before finance costs 8955 955 416
Finance costs
Interest expense (2,041.403)
Total finance costs {2,041.409)
Profit after distributions and before tax 953 914,007
Withholding tax expenses (Mote 2.12) (4,864.978)
Total comprehensive income (being Increase in net assets attributable
to the holder of units from operations) L] 945 049,029

M This relates to net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") including realized and
unrealized gainsfosses on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and dividend incomsa,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
2
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SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Period from July 28, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)
through June 30, 2021

{Expressed in Japanese Yen)

At July 29, 2020 (Commencement of Operations) ¥ -
Izsue of units (Mote 3) 4,576,134,028
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets

attributable to the holder of units from operations) 845 049,029
At June 30, 2021 ¥ 5,525183,058

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period from July 28, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)

through June 30, 2021

{Exprﬁssad in Japanese Yen)

For the peried ended

Cash flows from operating activitias: June 30, 2021
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets attributable
to the holder of units from operations) ¥ 949,049,029

Adjustrents to reconcile total comprehensive incoma (being increase

in net assets attributable to the holder of units from cperations) to

cash provided by operating activities:

Purchases of investmeants in aquity securiies (6,454,332 053)

Proceeds from disposition investments in equity securities 2,448,504 BT

Net proceeds from settlement of forward contracts 217,80

Met realized gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss (379,284 508)

Met change in unrealized appreciation on financial assets and

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (599,202172)

{Increase) in receivables for securities sold (6,403, 307)

{Increaza) in recehvables for Interest (85,573)

{Increase) in recahvables for dividands (7,156,782)

{Increase) in prepaid fees (10,857,737)

{Increasa) in other assets (168,754)

increase in payables for securities purchased 17,339,827

Ingrease in other payablest" 24,260 435
Met cash (used in) operating activities (4,018,048 937)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from units issued, net of change in receivables for units

issued 4 575,134 029
Net cash provided by financing activities 4 578,134,020
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 558,085,092
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (Note 2.1) =
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (Note 2.1) ¥ 558,085,002
Supplementary information on cash flows from cperating activities
Interest received ¥ (95,573)
Dividends received ¥ 40113670
Withholding tax ¥ {4,864 978)

) CHher payables comprise of investment management fees, distribution fees, fee agent fees, professional fees, custody fees,
administrator fees, ransfer agent fees and agent member company fees as disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
4
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SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Period from July 28, 2020 {(Commencement of Operations)
through June 30, 2021

{Expressed in Japanese Yen)

1. ORGANLZATION

SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund (the “Series Trust”) is a series trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust
(Cayman) Il {the “Trust"), an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed dated December 2,
2013 under Cayman Islands law. The Seres Trust was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated
March 5, 2020 and executed by Elian Truslee (Cayman) Limited (the *Trustee™, a trust company incorporated under
the laws of the Cayman Islands. The Series Trust commenced operations on July 28, 2020 and unless previously
terminated in accordance with the provisions described in the section of the Offering Memorandum headed
"Termination of any Series Trust®, the Seres Trust will continue until the Final Repurchase Day being the earliest
practicable repurchase day following the first occurrence of any of the following; the net asset value ("Met Asset
Value") being the value of its total assets minus its liabilities including accrued fees and expenses) on any Valuation
Day is in respect of JPY Class Units JPY 100,000,000 or less and on that valuation day or thereafter the Manager
determines that all of the units of such class of units should be compulsorily repurchased by giving notice to all
unitholders, or the Trustee and the Manager agree that all of the units of such class of units should be compulsorily
repurchased (this may include, but is not limited to, circumstances where the Trustee and the Manager agree to
compuisorily repurchase all of the units for whatever reason on or after five years following the Initial Closing Day,
each a "Compulsory Repurchase Event”,

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusks Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands and registered under
the Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on January 22, 2014,

The principal office for the Trustee (and therefore the Seres Trust) is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
KXY 1-9005, Cayman Islands (formerly 120 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY 1-9007, Cayman Islands).

The Manager of the Series Trust is Credit Suisse Management {Cayman) Limited (the "Manager”).

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. (the
*Administrator®, “Custodian® and "Transfer Agent™).

Credit Suisse International acls as the Fee Agent (the “Fee Agent™).

Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the “Agent Membear Company”™).
The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is 5Bl Asset Management Co., Ltd. (the “Investment Manager").

The Sub-Investmeant Manager of the Series Trust is Pictet Asset Management SA (the "Sub-Investment Manager”).

The Manager has authorized SBI SECURITIES Co., Lid. to act as the Distributor {the "Distributor) of the units in
Japan.

The Series Trust is denominated in Japanese Yen ("Yen™, “JPY" or “¥") and units are denominated in Yen.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to seek to benefit from medium to long-term capital appreciation, in
Yen terms, mainly deriving from investment in public and private Japanese and Asian equities.

The Series Trust has the following corefsatellite investment themes;
1) Core Theme - Innovative Technologies and Services

The Series Trust aims to achieve capital growth through selective investment in equities of companies that
are expected to lead industries, mainly by creating innovative technologies and services, using a rigorous
research process among a wide range of industries (the “Innovative Technologies and Services”).

The industries in scope include, but are not limited to, companies in the following investment areas: Fintech,
Al (Artificial Intelligence) and blockchain. The investment focus includes any high tech industry that
promotes “Industry 4.0° such as loT (Internet of Things) and robotics, 56 and “Society 5.0°, where
innovative technologies and services that cover a wide range of industries, such as healthcare (medical and
nursing care), infrastructure (fraffic and energy), food and agriculture, etc. are invalved.
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2) Satellite Theme — Megatrends

Under the theme of the Innovative Technologies and Services, the Seres Trust also aims to achieve capital
growth through selective investment in equities and equity related securities of companies that may benefit
from glebal long-term market themes resulting from secular changes in ecenomic and secial factors such as
demographics, lifestyle, regulations andfer the environment (the “Megatrends®).

The Ex-Japan Asian Public Equity Portion is focused on themes positioned at the intersection of
Megatrends. Companies strategically active within such themes are expected to experience long-term
growth superior ta that of the overall economy.

The Series Trust's investment portfolio is divided into different portions (together the “Whole Asset Portfolio”):

(il Private Equity Portion
A part of the Series Trust's assets is invested in private Japanese and Asian equities (the *Private Equity
Portion®).

(i) Public Equity Portion
A part of the Series Trust's assets is invested in public Japanese and Asian equities (the *Public Equity
Partion"). The Public Equity Portion is divided further in;

a.public Japanese equities (the "Japanese Public Equity Portion”) being shares (the “Japanese
Shares") listed on stock markets in Japan; and

b. public Asian (but excluding Japan) eguities (the “Ex-Japan Asian Public Equity Portion™ being
securities (the “Ex-Japan Asian Securities”) that are:

i. shares listed on stock markets in Asia excluding Japan; and
il. equity related securties, including but not limited to:

1. instruments issued by exchange traded funds ("ETFs"), exchange traded notes ("ETNs")
or warrant issuers {"Warrants") which refer to equity indices of Asian countries excluding
Japan andf/or shares listed on stock markets in Asia excluding Japan, in each case
without leverage;

2. the following depositary receipts collateralized by shares listed on stock markets in Asia
excluding Japan:

a. America via American depositary receipts ("ADRs"),
b. European depositary receipts ("EDRs");
c. global depositary receipts ("GDRs"); and

3. listed instruments issued by real estate investment trusis ("REITs") that invest in real
estate assets in Asian countries excluding Japan.

(iiiy Cash Portion
A part of the Series Trust's assets are invested in cash and cash equivalent invesiments (the "Cash
Portion™). This includes JPY and non-JPY cash deposits, money market funds and money market
instruments (including, but not limited to, commercial paper, cedificates of deposit and govemment bills). For
the avoidance of doubt, ovemight cash balances may be held in the Custodian's sweep vehicle.

(iv) Hedging Derivatives
All or any part of the Series Trust's assets attributable to the JPY Class Units and denominated in non-JPY
cumancies may, in the sole discretion of the Investmant Manager and the Sub-Investmant Manager, be
hedged to JPY by entry into the Hedging Derivatives.

The Investment Manager has been appointed with discrefionary management power to manage the Whole Asset
Portfolio. The Investment Manager has appointed the Sub-lnvestment Manager with discretionary management
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power to manage the Ex-Japan Asian Public Equity Portion and a corresponding portion of the Cash Portion and the
Hedging Derivatives.

The Investment Manager manages and determines the asset allocation among the Private Equity Portion, the
Japanese Public Equity Portion and the Ex-Japan Asian Public Equity Portion.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on October 28, 2021.

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistenfly applied fo all the periods presented, unless otherwise siated. The financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporiing Standards (IFRS). The
preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain crifical accounting estimates
and requires the Trustea and the Manager to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust's
accounting policies. Areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed
in Note 4, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Enfities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27) (2012) (the
Amendments). Management concluded that the Seres Trust meels the definition of an investment entity.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 8 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortized cost, fair value
through profit and loss (FWTFL) and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The classification of
financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortized cost or FWTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

i) It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and,

iy Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely represent payments of
principal and interast (SPPI).

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i) Its confractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal
and interast (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

iy It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or to both
collect contractual cash flows and sell;

iy At initial recognition, it is imevocably designated as measured at FVTPL when doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recogniion inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases,
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Series Trust considers:
- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;
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- prepayment and extension features;
- terms that limit the Seres Trust's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features); and
- features that modify consideration of the ime value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).
The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:
- Hald-to-collect business model; this includes cash and cash equivalents, prepaid fees, receivables for

dividends, securities sold and interest, and other assels. These financial assets are held to collect
contractual cash flow.

- Other business model: this includes financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. These financial
assets are managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking
place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business maodel in which a financial asset is held, the Series Trust
considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

- the decumented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether the
investment strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash
outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust's management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;

= how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust's continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial liabiliies carmied at amortized cost include bank overdraft, payables for securities purchased, investment
management fees, distribution fees, fee agent fees, professional fees, custody fees administrator fees, transfer agent
fees and agent member company fees.

Impairment of financial assats

The “expected credit loss® (ECL) model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and debt investments
at FWVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

Based on the Series Trust's assessment, the ECL model does not have a material impact on the Series Trust's
financial assets because:

- The majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment requirements do not apply to such
instruments.

- The financial assets at amortized cost are short-term (i.e. no longer than 12 months), of high credit quality and/or
highly collateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs on such assets are expected to be small.
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Mew standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the period from July 29, 2020
(Commencement of Operations) through June 30, 2021:

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after July 29,
2020 (Commencement of Operations) and earier application is permitted; however, the Seres Trust has not eary
applied these new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements as they do not have a material
effect on the Series Trust's financial statements.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and short-term deposits with original maturity of three months or
less to be cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdraft is shown in liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

At June 30, 2021 the Series Trust held the following balances as cash and cash equivalents:

June 30, 2021
Cash ¥ 6,042,509
Time deposit 562 195 775
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position 558 238,284
Bank overdraft {153,162}
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows ¥ 558 085,082

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

(A) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assets and liabilities into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
* Mandatorily at FVTPL: Investments in equity securities.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

June 30, 2021 - June 30, 2021 -
Fair Value Cost
Investmenis in equity securities ] 4,984 006,065 [} 4,384 803,803

Financial assets at amortized cost:
= Cash and cash equivalents, prepaid fees, receivables for dividends, securities sold, interest and other assets.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

+ Other liabilities: bank overdraft, payables for securities purchased, investment management fees, distribution fees,
fee agent fees, professional fees, custody fees, administrator fees, transfer agent fee and agent member company
feas.

(B) Recognition/Derecognition

The Saeries Trust recognizes financial assets and liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date - the date
on which the Series Trust commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized when its contractual obligations are discharged,
canceled or expired.

(C) Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value with transaction
costs recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the ‘financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the
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Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. Realized gains or losses on sale of
investments are calculated using first-in-first-out method.

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are carried at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if any. This is considered to approximate fair value due to
the short-term or immediate nature of these instruments.

(D) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments fraded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market paricipants
at the measurement date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. Investments or other assets for
which market quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair value as determined in good faith in
accordance with procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from the Manager. The resulting net change in
unrealized gains or losses are reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(E) Investments in listed securities

The fair value is based on their quoted market prices on a recognized exchange or sourced from a reputable
broker/counterparty, in the case of non-exchange traded instruments, at the Statement of Financial Position date
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

(F) Investments in unlisted securities

The portfolic companies in which investments are made may never be publicly traded or listed on a secunties
exchange. Investments in unlisted companies are riskier than investments in listed companies because, among other
things, they are not subject to the same disclosure and reporting requirements that are generally applicable to public
companies. Additionally, investments in unlisted companies may be difficult to value and difficult or impossible to
realize.

(G) Forward Contracts

Forward conftracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument, currency, commeodity
or an index at a specified future date for a specified price and may be setfled in cash or another financial asset.
Forward contracts are valued using observable inputs, such as currency exchange rates or commaodity prices, applied
to notional amounts stated in the applicable contracts. Gains and losses are reported in net realized gain or loss on
financial assets through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position anly
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. As at June 30, 2021, all financial assets and liabilities
are shown at their gross amounts as none met the criteria for financial instrument offsetting, and therefore have not
been offset in the Statement of Financial Position.

2.4 Receivables for Securities Sold and Payables for Securities Purchased

Receivables for securities sold and payables for securities purchased represent trading transactions that have been
contracted for but nol yet settled on the Statement of Financial Position date, respecfively. These amounts are
recognized initially and subsequently measured at fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables
for securities sold, A provision for impairment is established when there is cbjective evidence that the Series Trust will
not be able to collect all amounts of receivables for securities sold. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial recrganization, and default in payments are considered
indicators that the amount of receivables for securities sold is impaired.

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation
(A) Functional and Presentation Currency

The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the investors in Yen. The Trustee considers the
Yen as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and
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conditions of the Seres Trust. The financial statements are presented in Yen, which is the Series Trust's functional
and presentation cumrency.

(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in Yen amounts at the date of
valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities, issue and repurchase of units and income and
expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Yen amounts on the respective dates of such
transactions.

Reported net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign exchange
rates on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are included in net realized gain or loss on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or
depreciation on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Realized and unrealized appreciation or depreciation from forgign currency transactions and translation are disclosed
separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.7 Distributions

The Series Trust may generate a certain amount of income each year. The current policy of the Seres Trust is to not
pay distributions in respect of the JPY Class Units provided that, the Manager may, in its discretion, declare and pay
distributions from time 1o time.

If the Manager does declare any distributions in respect of the JPY Class Units, it is anticipated that any such
distributions will be declared on an annual basis on each Distribution Declaration Day.

The distribution is expected to be computed from the following separate elements:

(i) an amount equal to the dividends or distributions paid by the investments constituting the Whole Asset
Portfolio {net of all applicable taxes);

(i) interest accrued on the dividend or distribution amounts received from (i) above, until paid out on the
comaspanding Distribution Date (paragraphs (i) and (i) hereafter referred to as the "Generated Income”);
and

(iii)y realized and unrealized capital gains from the Whole Asset Portfolio (the “Generated Capital Gains")

In principle, the amount of distribution to be paid in respect of each Distribution Date shall be determined by the
Manager in its sole discretion taking into account (1) Generated Income, (2) Generated Capital Gains, and (3)
miscellanecus costs, among other factors, per Unit, in each case attributable to the corresponding Distribution Period.

The Manager may, where it deems appropriate, elect that a distribution be paid in whole or in part out of investment
principal attributable to the JPY Class Units, that is in excess of any Generated Income received (and which may also
be in excess of any Generated Capital Gains) over a Distribution Period, where it deems such amounts fo be
insufficient to fund that distribution.

Circumstances where the Manager may elect fo pay part or all of a distribution cut of the investment principal include,
but are not limited to, where it determines in its sole discretion that application of the Series Trust's investment
objectives and policies have generated a negative performance over the previous year or have underperformed such
that the Manager deems it appropriate to make such election.

There were no distributions declared and paid during the period ended June 30, 2021.

1"
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2.8 Repurchases of Units

The Series Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder's option. The Series Trust classifies its puttable
instruments as liabilites in accordance with |AS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: PFresentation.
The amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified
as equity where certain strict criteria are met. Those criteria include:

« The puttable instruments must entitie the holder to a pre-rata share of net assets;
+ The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be identical;

+ There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the obligation
on the issuer to repurchase; and

= The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially on the
profit or kass of the issuer.

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust's units have been classified as equity at June 30, 2021.

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Series Trust's total
equity.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the holder
exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust's total equity per unit at the time of issue or
repurchase. The Series Trust's equity per unit is calculated by dividing the total equity by the total number of
outstanding units. Refer to Note 3 for further discussion.

2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enter into certain contracts that contain a variety of
indemnifications. The Series Trust's maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown. However, the Series
Trust has not had prior claims of losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased

Receivable for units issued is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Financial Position
date. Payable for repurchase of units is camied at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statement of
Financial Position date.

2.11 Net income/{loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL

Met income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes realized and unrealized gainsflosses on financial assets
and liabilities and dividend income. Net realized gain or loss from financial instruments at FYTPL is calculated using
the first in, first out method. Net realized gain or loss on financial assels and labilities at FWTPL represenis the
difference between the cost of the financial instrumenis and its sefflement price of the sale trade. Net change in
unrealized (depreciation)/appreciation on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL represents the difference between
the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price if it was
;p;rd'lasad in the curment reporting period and its carmying amount at the end of the reporting period. Refer to MNote 7

further details.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment iz established. Accretion of discount and
amodization of premium ower the life of the respective security a2 calculated using the effective yield method.
Dividend income and expense (where relevant) presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise
dividend on financial azsets and financial liabilities measured at FVTPL.

2.12 Taxation
The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it from all local income,

profits and capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063, No such taxes are levied in the Cayman |slands at the present
tima,
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The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital gains.
Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

For the period ended June 30, 2021 taxes were comprised of the following balance:

2021
Withholding Taxes on Dividends ¥ 4,864,878

The Series Trust may choose to invest in securiies domiciled in countries other than the Cayman Islands. Many of
these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains faxes may be applicable to non-residents
including the Series Trust. These capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and,
therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Series Trust's broker on a "withholding™ basis.

In accordance with IAS 12 — Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it is probable
that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed on the Series Trust's capital gains sourced
from such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and
circumstances. The tax liability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation
authorities using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way enacted tax law is applied to offshore investment Series
Trusts, This creates uncerainty about whether or not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust.
Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax liabilities management considers all of the relevant facts and
circumstances available at the fime which could influence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal
practices of the relevant tax authorities.

As at June 30, 2021, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a liability to record for any
unrecognized tax benefit in the accompanying financial statements. While this represents the Manager's best
estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital gains earmed by
the Series Trust This could happen without giving prior warning, possibly on a retrospective basis, and could result in
a loss to the Series Trust,

2.13 Transaction Feas

Transaction fees are costs incurmed to acquire or dispose of financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. Transaction costs, when incurred, are immediately recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as
an expense. For the period ended June 30, 2021, the Series Trust paid ¥5,417 670 in transaction fees.

3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Net Asset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value of the Series Trust
by the total number of units of the Series Trust then outstanding. The Administrator computes the Net Asset Value of
the Series Trust at the close of business on each dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid in Japanese Yen.

The minimum initial subscription must be no less than 100 units. All unitholders must complete a subscription
application. The initial purchase price of units is JPY10,000 per unit.

All payments for the units must be made in Japanese Yen. The Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason
and without providing reasons.

After the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent subscription date at the
relevant subscription price. All payments for the units shall be made in Japanese Yen. The Trustee may reject any
subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

The Trustee or its duly designated agent must receive the subscription price for the units on or prior to 5:00 p.m.

(Tokyo time) by no later than the second business day after the relevant subscription date. Subscription applications
are imevocable.
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The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of June 30, 2021 were as follows:

Net Asset Value per

Classes of units Total not assets Units outstanding unit
JPY Class Units ¥ 5525183058 435608 ¥ 12,683.8129

As of June 30, 2021, all issued units were held by one unitholder, who holds 100% of interest in the net assets.

A unitholder may transfer its holdings in units only with the prior written consent of the Trustee which consent shall
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No transfer of units will be effective and binding on the Trustee or
unitholder until entered into the Series Trust's register of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submit to the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase nofice requesting to have all or
a portion of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on the relevant repurchase date. Repurchase orders may
be submitted in units. If such notice is not in respect of the entire holding units of such unitholder recorded in the
register of unitholders then the Trustee in its sole discretion may apply a minimum repurchase requirement of 1 unit.
Repurchase nolices are imevocable.

At the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit
being repurchased.

Amounts payable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class are paid in cash but may be
made in kind (or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities held by the Trustee to the extent that the Trustee, in
consultation with the Manager, determines it to be in the best interests of the unitholder. if such a determination is
made by the Trustee, distributions to all repurchasing unitholders on the same day are made on the same basis.

Payment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such applicable currency as
a unitholder may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted from the amount payable to
such unitholder. No such repurchase proceeds will bear interest prior to actual distribution.

During the period ended June 30, 2021, the proceeds from units issued, repurchased and outstanding were as
follows:

At July 29, 2020
(Commencement of Proceeds from units Proceeds from units At
Classes of units Operations) issued repurchased June 30, 2021
JPY Class Units ¥ - ¥ 4576134029 ¥ - ¥  4,576,134,029

During the period ended June 30, 2021, the number of units issued, repurchased and outstanding were as follows:

At July 23, 2020
(Commencement of At
Classes of units Operations) Units issued Units repurchased June 30, 2021
JPY Class Units - 435,608 - 435,609

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended in any
circumstances where the calculation of the Met Asset Value per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform unitholder
of such a suspension as soon as practicable after it is imposed or lited. Subscriplion applications and repurchase
notices cannot be withdrawn during such suspension and will be processed for the next subscription date or
repurchase date, as the case may be.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that affect the reported amounts of assets and
lighilities. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experence and other factors, induding
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The Series Trust may, from time to time, hold
financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
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instruments are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are
used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by the Manager.

§. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market rsk (including currency risk, interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of these risks is camied out by the Manager under
policies approved by the Trustee,

The Series Trust uses different methods to measure and manage the various types of risks to which it is exposed;
these methods are explained below.

(A) Market Risk

(i) Currency Risk

Equity securities in which the Seres Trust invests may be denominated or quoted in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Series Trust. For this reason, changes in foreign currency exchange rates can affect the
value of the Series Trust's portfolio.

Generally, when the Series Trust's functional currency rises in value against another currency, a security
denominated in that currency loses value because the currency is worth less giving effect to the conversion into the
Series Trust's functional currency. Conversely, when the Series Trust's functional currency decreases in value
against another currency, a security denaminated in that currency gains value.

This risk, generally known as “currency risk”, means that a strong functional cumency of the Series Trust may reduce
returns to investors while a weak functional currency of the Series Trust may increase those returns. Currency rates
may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time for a number of reasons, including changes in interest rates,
intervention (or the failure to intervene) by the governmenis, central banks or supranational entities such as the
International Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency controls or other political developments. As a result, the
Series Trust's investments in foreign-curmency dencminated securities may reduce its returns. Certain positions taken
by the Series Trust are designed to profit from forecasting currency price movements. Predicting future prices is
inherently uncertain and the losses incurred, if the market moves against a position, will not be hedged. The
speculative aspect of attempting to predict absolute price movements is generally perceived to exceed that involved
in attempting to predict relative price fluctuations.

Through the use of various types of foreign currency transactions, the Series Trust may be exposed fto the
performance of a parficular currency or currencies to confribute to the performance of the Series Trust. There can be
no assurance that the Manager will employ a successful currency program and the Series Trust could incur losses
attributable to its currency activities when the value of the functional currency weakens against the other currencies of
the Series Trust. In addition, the Series Trust will incur transaction costs in connection with the cumrency strategy
designated by the Manager.
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The table below summarizes the Series Trust's exposure to currency risks at June 30, 2021:

Financlal Assets
at Fair Value % of Net
At Cash and Cash through Profit or  Other Assets and Asset
June 30, 2021 Equivalents Loss Liabilities [Net) Net Value
Chinese Yuan
Renminbi (offshore
market) CMH ¥ - ¥ 302,756,677 ¥ - ¥ 302,756,677 5.5%
Chinese Yuan
Renminbi {onshorne
market) CNY 2,084 820 = - 2,094 B20 0.0%
Hong Kong Dollar HED 21,537 820 1,0308,240,789 0,717,935 1,070,496,533 10.4%
Indonesian Rupiah IDR B51,666 - - 561,666 0.0%
South Korean Won  KRW 2,209,344 517.556 645 432,926 520,288.915 9.4%
Singapore Dollar SGD 1,882,860 90,5944, 160 = 92, 837.038 1.7%
New Tawan Dollar  TWD T8E 680 472,796,862 314,656 473,888,238 B.E%
United States Dollar  USD 5529813 591,807,943 (8822 379) S588,505.477 10.6%
35,003,121 3,015,193,065 1,543,178 3,051,730,364 55.2%
Japanese Yen JPY 523,081,871 1,968,813,000 (18,451,277} 2473443694 44.8%
¥ 558,085,082 ¥ 084,006,065 ¥ 16 098) ¥ 5525183058 100.0%

The following table summarizes the sensitivity of the Series Trust's assets and liabilities to changes in foreign
exchange movements at June 30, 2021. The analysis is based on the assumptions that the relevant foreign
exchange rate increased/(decreased) against the Japanese Yen by the percentages disclosed in the table, with all
other variables held constant. This represents management's best estimate of a reasonably possible shift in the
foreign exchange rates, having regard to historical volatility of those rates.

Reasonably possible

shift In currency rate Impact to Serles Trust
Currency 2021 Net Assats
CHNH - 14.88% - M 44 080 B42
CHY - 11.81% - 247 3BB
HED #= 5,88% #e B2.,845 186
IDR +- 8.38% +- 54 974
ERW #l- 12.05% - 62,654 814
5GD - 8.21% - 7,621,921
TWD ol 9.98% LI 47,285, 044
usD e 8.08% *l 35,830,084

It is expected that a substantial portion of the assets of the Series Trust may be denominated in non-JPY currencies.
Accordingly, the Series Trust may have exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates through investment in
investment currencies other than JPY. This may include, but is not limited to, USD and RMB.

In principle, the Investment Manager and Sub-lnvestment Manager will not enter into any currency hedging
transactions in respect of such foreign exchange exposure. However, the Investment Manager and Sub-Investment
Manager, as applicable, may, at its sole discretion, enter into currency hedging transactions which are designed to
reduce, but not eliminate, exchange-rate rsk and protect all or any part of the assets attributable to the JPY Class
Units from a depreciation in the investment currencies against JPY.

To the extent that any such hedging is camied out, the Investment Manager and Sub-Investment Manager, as
applicable, may use spot contracts, forward foreign exchange contracts, non-deliverable forwards (including cross
forward foreign exchange contracts, swaps, options and futures in order to attempt to hedge against such currency
fluctuations. There can be no assurance that such hedging transactions will be effective if carried oul. The gains or
losses attributable to any such hedging shall be applied to the JPY Class Units.

(i) Interest Rate Risk
The majority of the Series Trust's financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing. Interest bearing assets held
by the Series Trust are comprised of cash and cash equivalents, including bank overdraft whose maturity is less than
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three months. As a result, the Series Trust is not subject to any significant risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates.

At June 30, 2021, should interest rates have lowered or risen by 50 basis points with all other variables remaining
constant, the increase or decrease in total comprehensive income of the Senes Trust (being increase in net assets
attributable to the holder of units from operations for the period) would amount to approximately ¥2, 760,979 assuming
that the cash position will be held for one year.

(iii) Market Price Risk

The market price of securities owned by the Seres Trust may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably.
Securities may decline in value due to factors affecting securities markets generally or particular industries
represented in the securties markets. The value of a security may decline due to general market conditions which are
not specifically related to a paricular company, such as real or perceived adverse economic conditions, supply and
demand for particular securities or instruments, changes in the general outiook for corporate eamings, changes in
interest or currency rates or adverse investor sentiment. They may also dedline due to factors which affect
a particular industry or industries, such as labor shortages or increased production costs and competitive conditions
within an industry. During a general downturm in the securities markets, multiple asset classes may decline in value
simultaneously. Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed income securities.

The following table summarizes the concentration in market price risk as at June 30, 2021:

Industry Name: Fair Value % of Net Assets
Investment in securities

Advertising ¥ 166,846,000 3.0%
Apparel 54,402 179 1.0%
Auto Manufacturers 36,355,115 0.7%
Auto Parts & Equipment 55,312 568 1.0%
Banks 189,880,554 3.5%
Baverages 128,023,344 2.3%
Biotechnology 122,109,500 2.2%
Building Materials 72,018,835 1.3%
Chemicals 87,208,184 1.6%
Commercial Services 215,883,330 3.9%
Computers 371,457 557 B.7%
Diversified Financial Services 186,385,821 3.4%
Electronics 79,052 362 1.4%
Enargy-Allemate Sources 116,095,499 2.1%
Forast Products & Paper 58,078.359 1.0%
Healthcare-Products 9,411,971 1.8%
Healthcare-Sarvices 136,435,000 2.5%
Home Fumishings 200,070,992 3.8%
Insurance 119,740,581 2.2%
Internet 545,822 991 11.7%
Laisure Time 123,715,632 22%
Machinery-Diversified 313,845,000 5.7%
Pharmaceuticals 64,363,150 1.2%
Real Estate 117,717 412 2.1%
Retall 41,242,991 0.7%
Semiconduclors 402,747 BO2 7.3%
Software 524,777 655 9.5%
Telecommunications 103,786,524 1.9%
Exchange Traded Fund 132 114,167 2.4%
Total investment in equity securities ¥ 4 984 008,065 90.2%
Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss ¥ 4,984 006,065 80.2%
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Country Mame Fair Value % of Net Assets
Investment in equity securities

China ¥ 1,504,468,711 27.2%
Hong Kong 207, 12,511 5.4%
Japan 1,968,813,000 35.6%
Singapore 090,044,160 1.7%
South Korea 517,556,645 9.4%
Taiwan 472,796 862 8.5%
United States 132,114,167 2.4%
Total investment in equity securities ¥ 4 984 006 065 90.2%
Financial agsets at fair value through profit or loss ¥ 4,984,008 065 90.2%

As the Series Trust's investments are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, all changes in market conditions will directly affect the lotal net assets and total
comprehensive income.

An increase in market prices of the investment in equity securities of 1% at June 30, 2021, would have in-creased the
total equity by ¥49,840,081. A decrease of 1% would, all else being equal, have an equal but opposite effect.

(B) Credit Risk
The Series Trust takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts
in full when they fall due.

Changes in an issuer's credit rating or the market's perception of an issuer's creditworthiness may affect the value of
the Series Trust's investment in that issuer. The degree of credit risk depends on both the financial condition of the
issuer and the terms of the obligation.

All transactions in fisted securiies are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is
considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is
made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to
meet their obligation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust's credit position on an on-going basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets at June 30, 2021 is the carrying amounts as shown on the
Statement of Financial Position. None of these assels are impaired or past due.

The clearing and depository operations for the Series Trust's security transactions are mainly concentrated with the
Custodian. At June 30, 2021 all cash and cash equivalents, balances due from broker and investments are placed in
custody with the Custodian, with a Fitch credit rating of A+.

{C) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Seres Trust's investments in
illiquid securities may reduce the retumns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell the illiquid securities at
an advantagecus time or price. To the extent that the Seres Trust's principal investment strategies involve non-
developed country securities, derivatives and securities with substantial market andfor credit risk, the Series Trust will
tend to have the greatest exposure to liquidity risk. The Series Trust's investments in private equities are difficult to
purchase or sell. The Private Equity Portion will invest in illiquid securities, which may reduce the return and original
investment principal of the Seres Trust because it may be unable to sell such illiquid securities at an advantageous
time or price.
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The tables below analyze the Series Trust's financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At June 30, 2021 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Bank overdraft ¥ 153102 ¥ - ¥ 153,192

Payables for:
Securities purchased 17,330,827 - 17,330,827
Investment managemeant fees 9,506,837 - 9,506,837
Distribution fees 8,148,723 = 8,148,723
Fes agent fees 2,716,242 - 2,716,242
Professional fees 2,117,019 - 2117019
Custody fees 820,250 - B20,250
Administrator fees 679,356 - 679,356
Transfer agent fees. 136,190 = 136,190
Agent member company faes 135818 - 135818

Contractual cash out flows (excluding
net assets attributable to the holder of
units) ¥ 41,753 454 ¥ - ¥ 41,753 454

Units are repurchased on demand at the holder's option. However, the Trustee does not envision that this contractual
maturity disclosed will be representative of the actual cash outflows, as holders of these instruments typically retain
them for the medium to long term.

The Manager monitors the Series Trust's liquidity position on an ongeing basis.
Liquidity risk is managed by investing no more than 15% of the Net Asset Value in illiquid assets.
At June 30, 2021 there were no Series Trust derivative financial instruments with gross settlement,

(D) Risk Managament

The Series Trust's Investment Manager's team is supported by certain risk management systems and professionals,
which provide regular reporting on all portfiolio positions and quantitative risk measures. Prospective investors should
be aware that no risk management system is fail-safe, and no assurance can be given that risk frameworks employed
by the Manager (e.g., stop-win, stop-loss, sharpe ratios, loss limits, value-at-risk or any other methodology now
known or later developed) will achieve their objectives and prevent or otherwise limit substanfial losses. No
assurance can be given that the risk management systems and techniques or pricing models will accurately predict
future trading pattems or the manner in which investments are priced in financial markets in the future.

(E) Capital Risk Management

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holder of units. The amount of net
assets attributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a daily basis as the Series Trust is subject to
daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unithclder. The Series Trust's objective when managing
capital is to safeguard the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide retums for the
unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the
investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Series Trust's policy is
to perform the following:

* Manitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative lo the liguid asseis and adjust the amount of
distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of units.

* Repurchase and issua new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Series Trust.

The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holder of units.

19

130/211



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

For the Period from July 28, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)
through June 30, 2021

{Expressed in Japanese Yen)

§.2 Additional Series Trust's Risks

(A) Custody Risk
Meither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust's entire holding of securities. The

Custedian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to act as custodians may become insclvent, causing the Series
Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians.

(B) Risk of Indemnification

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their respective agents,
principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Series Trust under
certain circumstances which may result in a decrease in Net Asset Value per unit.

(C) Settlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United States,
the European Union and Japan. Foreign setlement and cearance procedures and trade regulations also may involve
certain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically associated with the setlement of
United States investments. At times, setlements in certain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of
securities transactions. These problems may make it difficult for the Manager to carry out transactions for the account
of the Series Trust.

If the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a purchase of securities, it may miss attractive investrment
opportunities and certain of the Series Trust's assets may be uninvested with no return earned thereon for some year.
If the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a sale of securities, the Series Trust may lose money if the value
of the security then declines or, if it has contracted to sell the security to another party; the Series Trust could be
liable for any losses incurred.

(D) Derivatives

The Manager may use derivative instruments to hedge the Series Trust's investments or to seek to enhance the
Series Trust's retumns. Derivatives allow the risk exposure of the Series Trust to increase or decrease more quickly
and efficiently than other types of instruments. Derivatives are volatile and involve significant risks, including:

« Credit Risk — the risk that the counterparty (the party on the other side of the transaction) on a derivative
transaction will be unable to honor its financial obligation to the Series Trust

« Leverage Risk — the risk associated with certain types of investments or trading strategies that relatively small
market movements may result in large changes in the value of an investment. Certain investments or trading
strategies that involve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the amount originally invested.

+ Liquidity Risk — the risk that certain securities may be difficult or impossible to sell at the time that the seller would
like or at the price that the seller believes the security is currently worth.

The Manager may use dervatives for hedging purposes for the Series Trust, including anticipatory hedges. Hedging
is a strategy in which the Manager uses a derivative to offset the risks associated with other Series Trust's holdings.

While hedging can reduce losses, it can also reduce or eliminate gains or cause losses if the market moves in a
manner different from that anticipated by the Manager or if the cost of the derivative outweighs the benefit of the
hedge. Hedging also involves the risk that changes in the value of the derivative will not match those of the holdings
being hedged as expected by the Manager, in which case any losses on the holdings being hedged may not be
reduced and may be increased. There can be no assurance that the Series Trust's hedging strategy will reduce risk
ar that hedging transactions will be either available or cost effective. The Manager is not required to use hedging for
the Series Trust and may choose not o do so. Because the Manager may use derivatives to seek to enhance the
Series Trust's returns, its investments will expose the Series Trust to the risks outlined above to a greater extent than
if the Manager used derivatives solely for hedging purposes. Use of derivalives to seek to enhance retumns is
considerad speculative.

As of June 30, 2021, there were no Series Trust derivative assets and liabilities subject to netting arrangements and
similar agreaments.
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(E) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodian, with which
the Manager or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties
and default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Seres Trust. Any such default could result in
materal losses to the Seres Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the Series Trust
ta the counterparties in order to secure certain transactions. Mo collateral was pledged by the Manager during the
period ended June 30, 2021.

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

(F) Early Termination of the Series Trust
The Final Repurchase Day will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event ocour.

(G) Other Risk

In March 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization. The situation
remains dynamic with various cities and countries around the word responding in different ways to address the
outbreak. Uncertainty remains regarding the length of the disruption, as well as the ultimate impact, which the
pandemic may have on economic and market conditions globally. The value of assets held in the Series Trust has not
been adjusted due to COVID-19, and Management notes no significant performance issues for the Series Trust as a
result of the pandemic.

Management and the Trustee are monitoring developments relating to COVID-19 and are coordinating its operational
response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from global health organizations, relevant
govemments, and general pandemic responss best practices.

£.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Series Trust applies IFRS 13 Fair value measurement, and utilizes the last traded market price for its fair
valuation inputs for both financial assets and liabilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an cngoing basis.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
technigues. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each period end date. Valuation technigues used for non-standardized financial instruments such as
options, currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm's length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, oplion
pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of
market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

For instruments for which there is no active market, the Series Trust may use internally developed models, which are
usually based on valuation methods and technigues generally recognized as standard within the industry. Some of
the inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions. The
output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and
valuation techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the posiions the Series Trust holds.
Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model risk, liquidity risk
and counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

# Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

+ Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
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« Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in s entirety
is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For
this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value
measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that
measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a paricular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors spacific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by the Administrator, under
advisement of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager, considers observable data to be
that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and
provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of June 30, 2021 in valuing the
Series Trust's financial assets:

(Unadjusted)
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Financial Assets at Fair Identical Significant Other Significant
Valua Investments Observable Inputs Unobservable Fair Value at June 30,
Through Profit or Loss {Level 1) (Level 2} Iny Lewel 3 2021
Investrment in equity securities ¥ 4, 730,977,065 ¥ - ¥ 253,029,000 ¥ 4 584 006,065
Financlal assets at fair
valua '“'Il'm.lﬂh profit or loss ¥ 4,730,977.065 ¥ - ¥ 253 029,000 ¥ 4,984 008 DES

During the period ended June 30, 2021, there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on guoted
market prices, dealer quotations or altermative pricing sources supported by cbservable inputs are classified within
Level 2. These include over-the-counter derivatives and debt securities. As Level 2 investments include positions that
are not traded in active markets andfor are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiquidity andfor non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

The following table shows a reconciliation from opening balances to closing balances for fair value measurements in
Level 3 of the fail value hierarchy:

Balance at July 28, 2020 ¥ -
Total gains or loses recognized in profit or loss =
Purchases 253,029,000
Sales -
Transfers into Level 3 -
Transfers out of Level 3 =
Balance at June 30, 2021 ¥ 253,029,000

The table below sets out information about significant unobservable inputs used at June 30, 2021 in measuring
financial instruments categorized as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy:

Description Fair value at June 30, 2021 Valuation technigue
Common stock ¥ 253,028,000 Recent Transaction
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Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

M At June 30, 2021, cash and cash equivalents and all other assets and liabilities (including prepaid fees,
receivables for dividends, securities sold, interest and other assets, bank overdraft and payables for
secunties purchased, investment management fees, distribution fees, fee agent fees, professional fees,
custody fees, administrator fees, transfer agent fees and agent member company fees) are deemed short-
term financial assels and liabilities whose carmying amounts approximate fair value because of their short-
term nature. Refer to Note 2 for a description of the valuation techniques.

(i) Met assels attributable to the holder of units. The Series Trust repurchases and issues the units at the
amount equal to the proportionate share of net assets of the Series Trust at the time of repurchase,
calculated on a basis consistent with that used in these financial statements. Accordingly, the camying
amount of net assets attributable to the holder of units approximates their fair value.

&. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward contracts

The Series Trust invests in forward contracts which are designed to hedge the Series Trust's exposure to fluctuations
in the currency rate between Japanese Yen (in which the Series Trust and the units are dencminated) and currencies
other than JPY. Forward contracts are entered by buying JPY forward contracts against other currencies under
normal circumstances in an amount equal, to the extent possible, to approximately 100% of the other cummencies
exposure of the MNet Asset Value (excluding unrealized currency gain or losses).

As of June 30, 2021, there were no open forward foreign currency contracts invested in the Series Trust.

7. NET GAIN/ LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

For the perlod ended

Juns 30, 2021
Meat gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value

through profit and loss consist of the following:

Met realized gain on investments in equity securities ¥ 378,068,707
Met realized gain on Investments in forward contracts 217 8901
Total net realized gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss ¥ 379,284 608
Mowvement in net unrealized appreciation on investments in
equity sacurities ¥ 589202 172
Total net change in unrealized appreciation on financial assets
and liabilithes at fair value through profit or loss ] 589,202 172

8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
8.1 Fees and Expenses

(A) Administrator Fees

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.06% on the first USS500 million of the net assets, 0.05% on the nesxt
US5500 million of the net assets and 0.04% on the net assets over US31 billion, subject to a monthly minimum fee of
$3,750. The fees eamed by the Administrator during the period ended June 30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable
to the Administrator as of June 30, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Custodian receives asset based and transactional charges dependent on market demographics of the assets.
The fees eamed by the Custodian during the period ended June 30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the
Custodian as of June 30, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement
of Financial Position, respectively.
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Motes to Financial Statements (continued)

For the Period from July 28, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)
through June 30, 2021

{Expressed in Japanese Yen)

(C) Distribution Fees

The Distributor receives an annual fee of 0.60% of the Net Asset Value attributable to the JPY Class Units payable
guarterly in arrears. The Distribution Fees are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the
assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Distributor during the period ended June 30, 2021, and
outstanding fees payable to the Distibutor as of June 30, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(D) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of the Net Asset Value and a $10 fee per transaction out of the
assels of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by the Transfer Agent during the period ended June 30, 2021, and
outstanding fees payable to the Transfer Agent as of December 31, 2020, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(E) Professional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the peried ended June 30, 2021, and
outstanding fees payable as of June 30, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

8.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Fee Agent, Manager, Agent
Member Company, Investment Manager and Sub-Investment Manager are all related parties to the Series Trust.

There were no other transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business.

(A) Trustee Fees

The Trustee is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee a fixed annual fee of $10,000 payable annually in
advance. The fees earmned by the Trustee during the period ended June 30, 2021, and cutstanding fees payable to
the Trustee as of June 30, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement
of Financial Position, respectively, as a part of fee agent fees.

(B) Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.20% of Net Assets Value (the "Operational Costs Fees”), accrued on and
calculated as at each valuation day. The Operational Costs Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the
Trustee out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by the Fee Agent during the period ended June 30,
2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Fee Agent as of June 30, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the Manager fees, the Trustee fees and costs and expenses, which are, in
the reasocnable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as associated costs and expenses of the Manager fees and
Trustee fees (the "Ordinary Costs").

(i) routine legal and auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and expenses;
(i) annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government bodies and agencies;

(jiiy communication costs related to investors services and unitholder's meetings, confirmations, financial reporting
and other reporting, proxies, costs relating to the preparation of the Offering Memerandum and the Appendix 24 and
other similar offering documents and the costs relating to the preparation, printing, franslation and delivery of such
documents; and

(iv) insurance costs (if any).

For the avoidance of doubl, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the investment manager fees, audit
fees, formation expenses, distribution fees, administration fees, custody fees, PEP research and valuation fees,
agent member company fees, payment of broker fees relafing to security fransactions and any taxes relating to the
purchase or disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs, licensing costs and any other extraordinary costs
and expenses that would not usually occur.
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For the Period from July 28, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)
through June 30, 2021

{Expressed in Japanese Yen)

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent is liable for
any outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs shall be retained by the
Fee Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust.

The Operational Costs Fees are payable quarterly in arrears in the amount accrued, from and excluding, for the first
accrual period only, the initial closing day, and for all other accrual periods, the last day of each calendar quarter.

(C) Manager Fees

The Manager is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee, a management fee of $5,000 per annum payable
menthly in arrears. The fees eamed by the Manager during the period ended June 30, 2021 and outstanding fees
payable to the Manager as of June 30, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
the Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a part of fee agent fees.

(D) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company is entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Met Asset Value payable
quarterly in arrears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager out
of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by the Agent Member Company during the period ended June 30,
2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Member Company as of June 30, 2021, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(E) Investment Management Fees

The Investment Manager receives an annual fee of 0.70% of the Net Asset Value payable quarterly in arrears.
The fees eamed by the Investment Manager during the period ended June 30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable to
the Investment Manager as of June 30, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
the Statement of Financial Position, respectively. The Investment Manager receives a research and valuation fee
related 1o Private Equity Portion securities.

8. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Series Trust may borrow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value if required to facilitate short term cash flows. During
the period ended June 30, 2021, the Series Trust did not incur any bormrowings.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

It was announced on September 7, 2021 BBH & Co. ("BBH") has entered into an agreement with State Street
Corporation (*State Street”) under which State Street will acquire BEH's Investor Services business; which includes
its custody, fund accounting and administration, transfer agency, depositary services, foreign ewchange and
securities lending services. The transaction is expected to be completed by the end of 2021, subject to customary
closing conditions and regulatory approvals. BBH and State Street are committed to providing uninterrupted service
and a seamless transition for our clients.

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through October 29, 2021, the date on which

these financial statements were available to be issued. Effective July 1, 2021 through October 28, 2021, there were
no other subsequent events to report as relates to the Series Trust.
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5,559,013

329,378

5,229,635

435,609

12,005
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2020 2019
UsD UsD
16,025 1,822 34,534 3,925
16,025 1,822 34,534 3,925
16,025 1,822 34,534 3,925
220,000 25,007 215,000 24,439
(1) )
236,025 26,829 249,513 28,362
(111,476) (12,671) (143,734) (16,338)
124,549 14,157 105,779 12,024
124,549 14,157 105,779 12,024
124,549 14,157 105,779 12,024
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2020 12 31

2020 2019

uSsD usD
9 1,643,796 186,850 1,436,186 163,251
10 220,970 25,118 217,427 24,715
1,864,766 211,968 1,653,613 187,966
10 217,933 24,772 131,329 14,928
217,933 24,772 131,329 14,928
11 735,000 83,547 735,000 83,547
911,833 103,648 787,284 89,491
1,646,833 187,196 1,522,284 173,038
1,864,766 211,968 1,653,613 187,966

2021 10

Brian Burkholder
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2020 12 31
uSsD uSsD usD
2020
735,000 83,547 787,284 89,491 1,522,284 173,038
124,549 14,157 124,549 14,157
12 31 735,000 83,547 911,833 103,648 1,646,833 187,196
2019
735,000 83,547 681,505 77,467 1,416,505 161,014
105,779 12,024 105,779 12,024
12 31 735,000 83,547 787,284 89,491 1,522,284 173,038
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2020 12 31
2020 2019

USD USD
124,549 14,157 105,779 12,024
4 (16,025) (1,822) (34,534) (3,925)
21 2
108,524 12,336 71,266 8,101
(3,543) (403) (10,575) (1,202)
(3.543) (403) (10,575) (1,202)
86,604 9,844 127,594 14,504
86,604 9,844 127,594 14,504
4 16,025 1,822 34,534 3,925
207,610 23,599 222,819 25,328
207,610 23,599 222,819 25,328
1,436,186 163,251 1,213,367 137,923
1,643,796 186,850 1,436,186 163,251
9 1,643,796 186,850 1,436,186 163,251
1,643,796 186,850 1,436,186 163,251
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309 c/o Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman
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2020

IAS I1AS

1ASB IFRS

15

2020 2019

16,025 34,534

16,025 34,534
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2020 2019
220,000 215,000
220,000 215,000

2020 2019

(34,668)

(1,182) (191)
(3,201) (3,119)
(107,093) (105, 756)
(111,476) (143,734)

2039 10 10
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SBI  PICTET

J REIT

us

2020

2020 2019
1,643,796 1,436,186
1,643,796 1,436,186

2020 2019

220,970 217,427
220,970 217,427
2020 2019

217,933 131,329
217,933 131,329
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2020 2019
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31

220,863 220,863 215,000 215,000

220,863 220,863 215,000 215,000

214,732 214,732 25,573 25,573
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
949,732 949,732 760,573 760,573

2020 2019
220,000 220,000 215,000 215,000
220,000 220,000 215,000 215,000
2020 2019
107,093 105,756
107,093 105,756

2020 12 31
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Flmancl siiements for the year snded 51 December 2000

Statement of Profit or Loss for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

UsD L 2020 2019

I Mol

Inferast income 16,025 24,534
= of wihich interest Income from instruments al amorlised cost 16,025 34,534
MNet interest income i 16,025 34,534

Senvieatiesincome T LB 0000 915,000
e s T '(5"'1'}
Mat revenuas 236,025 249,513

‘General, admiristralive and other operating expenses B (111,476) (143,734)
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 124,545 105,773

“Profit before tax 124,549 105,779

Prafit after tax 124,548 105,779

The accomparnying nofes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Hofes o Fimancial stafemants for the pear ended 57 Decemdber 2000

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020

usD an 2020 2019
IR e N e A S
Cash and due from banks G 1,643,795 1,438,186
Dmerassetslﬂﬂ'ﬂ'ﬂ,ﬁ?ﬂ?l?,ﬂfﬂ'?
Total assets 1,864,766 1,653,613
Liabilities p; W
Other Eabilities 10 217,833 131,39
Total liabilities 217,933 131,329
Shareholders’ equity e
ket e BN N R A ) AR, T/ 735,000
Retained eamings 911,833 TaT o5
Total shareholders’ aquily 1,646,833 1,522 284
Total liabilities and shareholders’ aquity 1,864,768 1,663,613

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors en 10 June 2021

Director

Brian Burkholder

i S T e T

The accomparnying nofes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Share Retained
uUsD capital  eamings Tatal
B I
BalancesttJonuary 735000 787,284 1522284
Profit for the year ~ 124548 124,549
Balance at 31 December 735,000 911,833 1,646,833

2019
“Botance s 1 daniany T e s 141608
Profit for the year — 106,779 105,779
Balance at 31 December 735,000 787,284 1,522,284

The accompaming nates form an integral part of these financizi staternants.
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Creckt Susse Manggernond (Capman) Lended
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Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Retorence 2020 2018
Uso bo-Flola
Cash flows from operating aclivities
Prefit for the year 194 548 105,779

Adjustments to reconcile nat profit to net cash
“generated from cperating activities

Non-cash items included in net profit before

tax and other adjustments:
ek ot L SR e T e R IRIET R (B .. L . .. |
Other Loss — 21

Cash generated from operating activities
before changes in operating assets and

liahilities 108,524 71.266
et (increase) in operating assets: I .
Other assets CUTTTTERAE) T 0,875)
Met (increase) in cperating assels (3.543) (10,575)
Metincrease in operating labilities: |
(Hher lighities 86,604 127 084
Met increase in operating liabilites 86604 127,594
Interest income receimnad 4 16,025 3-‘5.536 )
Met cash generated from operating activity 207,610 222,819
Met increase in cash and cash eguivalents 207,610 292 819
Cash and cash equivalents af tha beginning of year 1,436,186 1,213 367
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,643,796 1,436,186
Cash and due from banks ) 1,643,706 1,436,186
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,643,796 1,436,186

The aocompanmying nofes form an infegral part of these financial statements.
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et o Fiagrecisd slwlpmants o fha yaas sndied 31 Decambar 2000

Notes to the financial statements
1.  Principal activities

Credit Suisse Maragement (Cayman) Limited {the *Company”) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
wilh limited Fability. The Company’s principal scthvities are the creation of trusts and the administration
and management of assets in trusts. The Company’s registered office Is c/fo Maples Coporate
Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayran |slands.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
{a)  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporiing Standards (FRSs"), which collective term includes all apolicable individual
International Flnanclal Reporling Standards, International Accoueting Stardards ("1ASs) and
Interpretations issued by International Accounting Standards Board (TA58%. A sunmmary of the
significant accourting pebzies adopled by the Compary is set cut below,

(b}  Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurerment basis used in the preparation of Ihe finandial statements is the kistorical cost basis,

The preparation of fimancial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgaments, estimales ard assumplions that affect the application of policies ard reported amounts
of assets, liabiities, income and axpenses. The estimates and assocdiated assumptions are based on
historical experience and varous other factors thal are befeved to be ressonable under the
cireurnstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carnying values of
assets and liabilities that are nol readily apparent from ofher sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis, Revisions to
sccounting estimates ase recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised i the revision
affects only that period, or in the pericd of the revision and future penods if the revision affects bath
cument and future periods,

{c)  Foreign currency

The Compary's funclional and presentation currency is United States Dollars ("USDT. Foreign
curency fransactions during the year are iranslated into USD at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dales. Monetary assels and llabilibes denominated in foreign currencias are franslated
into USD at fhe forelgn exchange rates ruling at the end of the reparting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit e loss,

Mon-monetary assets and liabidies that are measured in lerms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated Into USD using the foreign exchange rates rling at the transaction dates, Mon-
manetary assets and habiities denominated in forelgn currendies thal are stated at fair value are
translated using the foceign exchange rales rufing at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign
currency diffesences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.

162/211



{d)

(e)

{g)

(h)

0]

EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Crodd Sudese Manageniant (Csenan) Limbed
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash &nd due from banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readiy comertible info known ameurts of cash and whish are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three manthe of maturity at acquisition,

Other assets

Other assels are infflally recogrised at fair value and thereafler stated al amordised cost less
Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") {refer to Mote Z{g)), except where the recehmbles are interast-free
boans made to related parties withcut any fied repaymeant terms or the effect of discounting would be

Enmaterial. In such cases, the recenables are staled at cost less impaiment for bad and doubbiul
debits,

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provigions are recognised for kabilities of uncertain timing or zmount when the Company has a legal
o canstructive obligation arising as a result of 2 past event, it is probable that an outliow of economic
benefits will be requived to setfle the cbligation and a relisble estimate cash be made. Whare the
time walue of money is materal, provisions are stated at the present value of the expendilure
expecied (o settle the cbligation,

Where it iz not probable that an outflow of economic benafits will be required, or the amount cannod
ke estimated refizbly, the obligation is disclosed as a cenfingent llabilily, unless the prabability of
cutflow of economic benefits s remote. Pessible obligabons, whase existence wil anky be confirmed
by the ccourence or nan-cocurence of one or more fufure events are also disdosed as conlingent
liabilities unless the prebabdity of outflow of econamic benefits is remota.

Impairment

The camying amount of the Company’s assets is reviewed al the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is any obisetive evdence of impairment. f any such objective evidence
exsts, the asset’s recoverable amount is estmated at the end o each reporting pericd. An

impairment loss |5 recognised whenever the camying amount of an asset exceeds ils recoverable
ameunt. Impairmant kesses are recogrised in the profit or loss,

Under [FRS 8, the impairment requirements apply primarily to financial assets measured at amoriised
cost. The impairment requirements are based on a forward-looking expected credit loss madel by
incarporating reasonable and supportable forecasts of fulure economic conditions available al the
reporting date. This requires considerable judgement over how changes in economic facters affect
ECLs, which is determined on a probabiity-weighted basis.

Revenue recognition

Prowided that it is probable that the economic benafits will flow to the Company and the revenue and
costs, if applicate, can be measured relizbly, sendce fee income Is recognised in profit or loss when
the imvestiment management senvice is proviced.

Expenses

All expenses are recognised in profit and loss on an accrual basis,
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2.  Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(i  Related parties

For the purpases of these financlal statements, a party i considered o be related to the Company f:
{a) A person, or a cdose member of thal persen®s family, is related lo the Company f that person:
{} has conlral or joint conlral over tha Company;
(fy  has significant influence aver the Company; or
i) s a member of the key management persannel of the Company or the Company’s parent.

(b} Anentiy is related to the Company if any of the following condifions apples:

i)  The enlity and the Compary are members of the same group fwhich means that each
parert, subsidiany and fellow subsidiary is related fo the athers),

(i) One enlily is an assodate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate oo joint
venture of 8 member of a group of which the ofher entity is & member),

fili}  Baoth entifies are joint ventures of the same third party,

{v} One entily is a joint venture of a third pary and the other entity iz an associate of the
third party.

) The enfity is a post-employment benefil plan for the benefit of employees of eitber the
Company or an enlily related to the Company.

(W) The entity i controlled o jaintly controlled by a person identified in (2).

il A person identified in (a)) has sgnificant influsnce over the entity or is a member of the
losy management persanrel of he entily (or of 2 parent of the endity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be axpacted to
influence, or be influenced by, that person intheir dealings with the endity,

(k)  Standards and Interpretations effective in tha current period

The Campary has apalied the folowing standards and amendments for the first time far their annusl
reporting period commencing 1 January 2020:
» Definition of Material - amendments to 1AS 1 and [AS B
* Revised Conceptual Framewaodk for Financial Reporiing
The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the cument or fulure perods,

3, Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASE has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are fist effective for the curent
accounting period of the Compary, Mone of these developments have had a malerial effect on how

the Campany's resulls and financlal position for the current o prior pericds have besn prapared o
presented in Maole 2(k).

The Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not ye! effectve for the
eurrent aceounting periad (Note 15),
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4, MNet Interest Income

uso 2020 2019
l_-.lat i:_ﬂ-_erﬂs‘t Ir_r::aum_a__ )

Interest income on cash and due from banks 16,025 34,634
Total interast income 16,025 34,534

All the abewve inerest income on instruments are at amorised cost,
5. Service Fee Income

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of assats in frusts.

Revenus represents investment management fee income eamed from fellow subsidiary as follows:

uso 2020 2018
Service fes income 220,000 ME000
Tatal revenues 220,000 215,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

uso 2020 2013
General administrative and other operating expenses »

(hher expenses -

Bar'x 3 arges ................................................................... {1 i 893, ....................
e _{10?093}
Total general administrative and other operating expenses {(111,478) {143,734)

All of the sbove expenditures are payable fo the Company's immediate holding company ard the
imrnediale ho'ding company setties such expenditures on bahaif of the Comparny,

7. Taxation
There are ne faves on income o gaing in the Cayman ldands and the Company has raceived an
undertaking from the Governor in Councd of the Cayman slands exempting it from all local income,

profits and capial tases until 10 Ocleber 2089, Accordingly, ne provision for income: texes is included
in these financial statements.
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8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Eponsared unconsolitslad struclured enfities

The: Company considers fiself the sponser of a structured enlity when either s name appears in the
rame of the structured enfity or in products issued by it or there is a general expectation from the
market that the Company is assecated with the structured entity or the Compary was Involved in the
design or et of the structured entity and has a form of Involvement with the structured entity,

The below unconschdated siructured entities are sponsored by the Company where a fixed annual
management fee of USD 5,000 (2015 USD 5000} s received but no Interest is held by the
Company as at 31 Decembar 2020

Daiwa Breoflian Real Bond Fund (For Quallfied instiutional Investor=Ony}y
Nissay Jopan Equily Active Fund (For Qualtied Instiufional fvestors Onby)
AMP Australia REIT Fund (For Qualified Insttutional Investors Griy)

Global High Dividend Equiy Premium Fund (for Guaified Instiubonal Tnvesioss Ony ™"
HOLT Eure Equily Eremium Fund (For Cualfied insiuional investors Sy} " "
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8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities {continued)

............................................................................................................

Daiwa J-REIT Covered Call Fund {For Oualified institutional nvestars Diry)

Foreign Derominaied Man AHL Smart Leverage Strategy Fued
B e N R e T e
AUD Shod TemBond Fund T

[Bowmsice Control Equity Fund (For Qualfied Institubonal Investors Only)”
* The funds were terminated dusing 2020,

The Company has nel previded financial ar ether suppert fo consolidated struchred enlities that it was
nat confractually required 1o provide.,

The Company does not cumenty have fhe intention fo provide financial or other support to
unconsolidated structured entities that it is not contractually requiced ta previde,

9. Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash equivalents comprisa;

UsoD 2020 2019
Cash and due from banks

Cash and due from bankes 1,643,796 1,436,186
Total cash and due from banks 1,643,786 1,436,186

10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

usp 2020 2019
Other assels

Interest and fees recaivable 220,970 2174297
Total other assets 220,970 217427
uso 2020 2019
Other liabilities

Interest and fees payable 217,833 131,329
Total other liabilities 217,933 131,329

12
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11.  Share Capital
(a)  Authorised and ssued share capital

2020 2019
Ma. of ush Mo. of usp
shares shares
Authorised:
Dﬁinary shares of USD 1 each 1000000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid up:
Oirdinary shases TAH000 TER000 V3HO000  Tah,000

The helders of ordinary shares are entitled to receie deadends as declared from time to time and are
antitied 1o ane vote per share at general meelings of the Company, AN erdinary shares rank egually
wilh regard te the Comparny's residual assels,

(1)) Capital management

The Company's primary cbjectves when managing capital are to safeguand the Company's ability to
continue as a going concem so lhal it can continue to provide retums fo shareholders, by pricing
services commensurately with the leve! of rsk and by securing access fo finance at a reasonable
cost. As the Company is parl of & larger group, the Company's sources of additional capital and
policies for dslribution of excess capital may also be aflected by the group's capital management
objectives, The Company defines “capital” as including ail components of equity.

The Company's capital structure is regulardy reviewsd and managed with due regard te the capital
management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adustments are made to the
capital structure in ight of changes In economic condiions affecting the Company or the group, o
the extent thet these do nat conflict with The directors’ fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Company was not subject to externally iImposed capital reguirements in the cument pericd,
12, Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to enedit, lquidity, intarest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Compary's business. These risks are managed by the Campany's financial management policies and
practices described below,

@)  Credit risk

The Compary’s eredit risk is primarily attributable to amaunts due from group companies and cash at
bank. Credit risk Is defined as risk that one parly o a financial instrument will cause a linancial foss to
arather party by failng to discharge an obdigation. Management ragulardy menitors its risk expasure to
ensure thal ds credil nsk is kept to a minimal level, The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the camying amount of each financial asset in the stalement of financial pesition after
deducting any impairment allowance.
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Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)
Licuiciity risk

The Company's paiicy is to regulary monitor its Rquidity requirements fo salisty ifs contractual and
reasonably foresesable obligations as they fall due.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of the Company's financial Fabilitias, which Includes alt creditors
and accruals, are an demand of undaled and are expacted 1o be setiled within three monihs.

Interest rate risk

The Campany is exposed o interest rale risk anly to the extent that it eams bank interest on cash
and deposits. At 81 December 2020 and 2019, a change in interest rates would have no direct
material alfect on the carying value of the recognised assels or abilittes of the Company.

Foraign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign cumancy risk primarily through certain ransactions which ghee rise
to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (*HKD®).

As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Company considers that the risk of moverenis in exchange
rates batwesn USD and HKD {o be insignificant.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Company’s finandial instruments caried al cost or amortised cost are
nol makesially different from their fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019,

Material Related Parly Transactions

In addition to the tansactions and balances disclosed elsewhera In the financial statements, the
Compary enterad into the following rmaterial related party transastions.

Related parly balance sheet transactions

31 December 2020 = 31 December 2019
Parant Fallow Todtal Farent Fellow Total
Group Group
UsD Companies Companies
Aasels
Cother aaassta - FA0EES 20,863 - 215,000 015,000
Tokal assols — 220,863 220,863 - 215,000 215,000
Linbilities and Equity
Oiwchelbe 2Wa o SWIR N8B m . .BEm
Share capilal AR D00 - 735000 V35000 T ek
Total Eatilities and
sharcholdors” eguity 949,732 = 948,732 TEO,5T3 - T60.573
14
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13.  Materlal Related Party Transactions {continued)

(b} Related party revenues and expenses

FIF) 2018
Parant Fellow Tatal Parent Eﬂuw Tokal
Group roup
ush Companies Companias
Revenues
Total revenuas - U000 220.000 - 215,000 215,000

fc)  Remuneration of key management personnel

Remuneration of key managemant personnsl {USD)

2020 2018
Short-lem ampkyas berafls 107,093 5,756
Total Remuneration of key manegemant personnel 107,093 105,756

14. Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

AL 31 December 2020, the immediate parent of the Company is Credit Sulsse {(Hong Kong) Limited,
which is incorporated in Hong Kong and the uimate controlling parly of the Compary is Credit
Suisse Group AG, which is incorporated In Switzerland, Credit Sulsse Group AG produces financial
statements available for public use.

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2020

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that ars not mandatory for
31 December 2020 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Company. These
standards are rat expected o have a material impact on the entity in the current or Tutune reporting
periods and on foreseeable fulure transactions.

16. Subsequent Events
There have been no matters or cecumstances that have ardsen since the end of the financial period,
which significantly affected, or may significantly afect, the operations of the Company, the resulls of
those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company in future financia! years.

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of direclors of the Company en 10
June 2021,
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2021 10 100 11,367
2020
Intertrust
N.V.
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2021 10 8,500
1,119 6,495
1940 206
2021 10 781
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SBI
2021 10 483 2,313
SBI SBI SBI 1999
10
2015 2019
Credit Suisse International
2021 10 113 6,600 2,919 7,322

1990 1985
2500199 1990
2000 27
2006 16

Credit Suisse Group AG

E14 4QJ 44 20 7888 8888
LEI ES8DKGMJYYYJLNBC3868

1990 16

Credit Suisse AG
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+1 345 949 4800
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee

P.O. Box 493

SIX Cricket Square Grand Cayman KY 1-1106 Cayman Islands
Telephone +1 345 949 4800

Fax +1 345 949 7164

Internet www.kpmg.ky

Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund (the “Series Trust”), a
seriestrust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 11, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
June 30, 2021, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the period from July
29, 2020 (commencement of operations) through June 30, 2021, and notes, comprising significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financia position
of the Series Trust as at June 30, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the period then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*1FRS").

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“I1SAS’). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Satements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Thase Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations,

or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of userstaken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Series Trust’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evauate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

October 29, 2021
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 3 to 15,
which comprise;

a. the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

b. the statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

c. the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;

d. the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e. the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSS’).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(“IESBA Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with |SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
meateria if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

a. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin interna control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 10 June 2021
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